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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHRIJANSHIL LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements “

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Institution") which comprise the Statement of Financial Position
as at Asar 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), the Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
subject to the effect of matters mentioned in Basis of Qualified Opinion section, the aforesaid financial
statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Financial Institution as at
Asar 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024) and its financial performance, changes in equity, cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and comply with Companies Act, 2063 and Bank
and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Financial Institution in accordance with the Handbook of the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN’'s Handbook of the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

On review of the financial statements of the institution, we noted following major issues which are not
rectified by the management of the financial institution. Considering the effects of these issues, we
consider to issue qualified audit report.

1. Under licensing condition no. 12 of the NRB letter dated 2075/11/03 and Company Directives, 2072
of the Office of Company Registrar, Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. should make
divestment of promoter share investment Rs. 46,700,000 of the Shrijana Community Development
Centre, .Siraha. Promoter share-holding of the Shrijana Community Development Centre should be
maintained within the limit specified under NRB Directive No. 10/079 Point No.6.
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2. The financial institution should make divestment of share investment in the Prabhu Bank Ltd.
(previous Century Commercial Bank Ltd.) to comply with the NRB Directive.

3. The financial institution should deposit staff gratuity with Social Security Fund under the Labour Act,
2074.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significant in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period. Those matters were addressed in the context of
the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N.

Description of Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of Loans & Advances

As per NRB Directives, the financial institution
shall measure impairment of loans and
advances at higher of:

a. Amount derived as per norms prescribed
by NRB for loan loss provisioning and

b. Amount derived by adopting incurred loss
model as per Carve out provided on
NFRS 9 financial instrument impairment.

Impairment of loan and advances under
incurred loss model requires assessment of
future cash flows as well as historical loss
experiences of portfolio. On the other hand,
impairment of loans and advances under
NRB norms for loan loss provisioning requires
assessment of overdue status of loans and
advances and proper utilization of loans for
the intended purpose, significant estimates
and assumptions used by management in
such calculations. Hence, the assessment of
availability and accuracy of required data for
impairment of loans and advances under
incurred loss model as well as NRB
provisioning norms is considered as key audit
matter.

Our audit approach included:

1.

Review individual loan files on sampling
basis and also review overdue status of
loans and advances by obtaining data from
the system and matching the same with
NRB 2.2 report.

Review credit files of sampled borrowers for
expected future cash flows from the
perspective of utilization of loan and
advances for the intended purpose by way
of scrutiny of financial statements, account
movements, account turnover and so on.

Analyze  historical data on loan
replacements and previous impairments to
check the accuracy and consistency of the
impairment model.

Our Result: Loan loss provision has been
made for loans and advances by following the
NRB Directives.

Information Technology Controls

Information Technology controls include
recording of transactions, generating reports
in compliance with NRB Directives and
Guidelines and other applicable regulations.

The financial information of the financial
institution is generated from its IT system
which is upgraded from time to time to meet
the operating needs of the financial institution.

Hence, the financial institution’s financial and
reporting processes are highly dependent on

| the effective working of Core Banking

Software and other allied systems.

Our audit approach included:

1.

Understanding the CBS and other allied
systems used by the financial institution for
accounting and reporting purposes.

Understanding the process of feeding data
in the system and conducting a walkthrough
of the extraction of the financial information
and statements from the IT systems existing
in the financial institution.

Checking of the user requirements for any
changes in the regulations/policy of the
financial institution.
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We have considered this as a key audit | 4. Reviewing the reports generated by the

matter as any control lapses, validation system on sample basis. We verified the
failures, incorrect input data and wrong interest income and expense booking
extraction of data may result in incorrect regarding loan and deposit on test basis
reporting to the management, shareholders, with the CBS.

regulators and stakeholdors. 5. We verify the provisioning of the loans and

advances based on ageing on test check
basis as on the reporting date.

Our Result: We considered the controls in the |
IT to be acceptable. |

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Financial Institution's Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Report, Report of the Board of
Directors and Chairman's Statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements of our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Financial
Institution’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Financial Institution or to cease the operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Financial Institution’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of-these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism through the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide the basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

e« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Financial Institution’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material on uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Financial Institution’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Financial Institution to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business
activities within the Financial Institution to express an opinion in the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, suspension and performance of the Financial Institution audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the
relevant ethical requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our examination, we would like to further report that:

i.  We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the
purpose for our audit.

i.  The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Cash Flows and attached Schedules dealt with by this report are prepared
as per procedure and format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank and agree with the books of
account maintained by the Financial Institution.
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iii.

Vi

Kathmandu, Nepal

The proper books of accounts as required by the law have been maintained by the Financial
Institution.

During our examination of the books of account of the Financial Institution, we have not come
across any cases where any office holder of the Financial Institution has acted contrary to the
provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Financial Institution. However, the institution
has entered into an agreement for Term Life Insurance of loanees with the American Life
Insurance Company (MetLife) at high price without following procurement procedures and also
acted as a corporate insurance agent without obtaining an insurance agent license under the
prevailing Insurance Act.

The Financial Institution has been functioning as per the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, based on our sample examination of
the books.

For, S.U.M. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2081-09-04 Sanjay Kumar Chaudhary
UDIN: 241219CA00508NCBKkQ Managing Partner
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As on 31 Asar 2081 (As at 15 July 2024)

As at As at
Note 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1 92,688,006 145,768,695
Statutory Balances & Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 13,845,785 31,804,693
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 = -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 " -
Other Trading Assets 45 - -
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - 2
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 2,193,006,950 2,188,288,126
Investment Securities 4.8 25,046. 344,953
Current Tax Assets 4.9 15,909,303 23,396,315
Investment Property 410 " -
Property and Equipment 4.1 14,689,154 16,672,240
Goodwill and Intangible assets 412 58,185 72,731
Deferred Tax Assets 413 2,174,483 3,304,441
Other Assets 4.14 9,576,900 15,372,494
Total Assets 2,341,973,811 2,425,124,688

As at As at
Note 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 415 - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 416 - B
Derivative Financial Instrument 417 - .
Deposits from Customers 4.18 761,835,870 823,021,087
Borrowing 419 1,106,893,338 1,231,361,962
_Current Tax Liabilities 49 6,845,498 7,426,203
Provisions 420 - .
Deferred Tax Liabilities 413 - -
Other Liabilities 4.21 239,430,246 150,763,883
Debt Securities Issued 4,22 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - =
Total liabilities 2,115,004,952 2,212,573,135
Equity

Share capital 4.24 109,375,000 109,375,000
Share premium B
Retained earnings 5,709,029 (6,342,791)
Reserves 4.25 111,884,830 109,519,343
Total equity 226,968,859 212,551,552
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,341,973,811 2,425,124,688
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Net assets value per share 207.51 194.33

g

Batuk Samsher Shrestha
Chief Execuitive Officer
[ ‘i '

Niva ahvestha
Director

Babita Shrestha
Director
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Renuka Kumari Shrestha
Director

Director

irish Subedi

Sanjay Chaudhary, FCA

S.U.M. Associates

Chartered Accountants

Manoj Mohan Pradhan
Director

ok Kumar Mandal
Finance Head



Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Asar 2081 (As at 15 July 2024)

Note

Current Year Previous Year
Interest Income 427 313,622,048 348,739,662
Interest Expense 4.28 205,797,377 223,695,123
Net Interest Income 107,825,571 125,044,539
Fee and Commission Income 429 23,101,674 25,163,045
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 17,169 51,461
Net Fee and Commission Income 23,084,505 25,111,583
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 130,910,077 i 150,156,122
Net Trading Income 4.31 - B
Other Operating Income 4.32 - -
Total Operating Income 130,910,077 150,156,122
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 433 (311,504) 52,402,613
Net Operating Income 131,221,581 97,753,509
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 87,158,626 103,154,993
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 14,499,630 16,494,011
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36 7,237,491 8,281,237
Operating Profit 22,325,833 (30,176,733)
Non Operating Income 4.37 - B
Non Operating Expense 4.38 - -
Profit before Income Tax 22,325,833 (30,176,733)
Income Tax Expense 4.39

Current Tax 7,157,083 7,691,660
Deferred Tax 1,129,907 3,063,836

Profit for the year 14,038,843 (40,932,229)
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Financial Institution 14,038,843 (40,932,229)
Profit for the year 14,038,843 (40,932,229)
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 12.84 (39.56)
Diluted earnings per share 12.84 (39.56)
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Asar 2081 (As at 15 July 2024)

Note Current Year

Previous Year

Profit for the year

14,038,843

(40,932,229)

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on Revaluation

Actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

168

(50)

(29,140)

8,742

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

118

(20,398)

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

118

(20,398)

Total comprehensive income for the year

14,038,960

(40,952,627)

Batuk Samsher Shrestha

As pecayr report of even date

Chief Execuitive Officer Chairman
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Cash flows
For the year ended 31 Asar 2081

Current Year Previous Year
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 313,622,948 347,795,716
Fees and other income received 23,101 674 25,163,045
Dividend received -
Receipts from other operating activities -
Interest paid (205,797,377) (223,6095,123)
Commission and fees paid (17,169) (51,481)
Cash payment to employees (87,158,626) (103,154,983)
Other expense paid (14,499,630) (16,494,011)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 29,251,820 29,563,172
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank -
Placement with bank and financial institutions -
Other trading assels & -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions -
Loans and advances o customers (4,407,320) (18,567 ,404)
Other assels 13,282 607 (4,426,146)
8,875,287 (22,993,640)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -
Deposit from customers (61,185.217) (1,514,893)
Borrowings (124,468,624) 67,688,204
Other liabilities EB.EEB,:}GS (4,456,412)
(96,987,478 61,716,898
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid (58,860,371) 68,286,430
+ Income taxes paid (7,737,789) (4,635,936)
Net cash flow from operating activities (66,598,161) 63,650,494
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities -
Receipts from sale of investment securities 319,907 =
Purchase of property and equipment (5,239,859) (4,423,765)
Receipt from the sale of praperly and equipment -
Purchase of intangible assets -
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets =
Purchase of investment properties -
Receipt from the sale of investment properties -
Interest received -
Dividend received =
Net cash used in investing activities (4,919,952) (4,423,765)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debl securities "
Repayment of debt securities 4
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities =
Repayment of subordinated liabilities 4
Receipt from issue of shares 38,375,000
Dividends paid 3
Interest paid fa
Other receipt/payment 378,514 66,799
Net cash from financing activities 378,514 39,441,799
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (71,139,598) 58,668,528
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2080 177,673,389 79,004,861
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held -
Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2081 106,533,701 177,673,380

As per our report of even dale

. -

Batuk Samsher Shrestha Raj Kumdr Shrestha Sanjay Chaudhary, FCA

Chief Execuitive Officer Chairman S.U.M. Associales
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Asar 2081
(As per NRB Regulation)

Current Year Previous Year
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 14,038,843 (40,932,229)
Appropriations:
a. General reserve 2,807,769 -
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund E
¢. Capital redemption reserve -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund 140,388 -
e. Employees' training fund -
[ Client Protection Fund 140,388 -
g. Other . -
Profit or (loss) befor regulatory adjustment 10,950,297 (40,932,229)
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (28.,385) (594.686)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) ’

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) -

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) -

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) 1,129,958 3,063,836
[ Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) S
g Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) <
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) .

i. Other (+/-)

Net Profit for the year ended 31 Asar 2081 available for distribution 12,051,870 (38,463,079)
Opening Retained Earning as on Shrawan 1, 2080 (6.342,791) 32,120,288
Adjustment (+/-) (50)
Distribution:
" Bonus shaes issued
Cash Dividend Paid
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on year end date 5,709,029 (6,342,791)

‘ o0
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 Asar 2081

1.  Reporting Entity

Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (Shrijanshil or “the Institution”) is a public limited
company, established under the Companies Act, 2063 (Registration No. 201330/075/076 dated
2075/07/07). It has obtained license from Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) as a “D” Class Financial institution
(License No. “D”/91/075/076 dated 2075/11/03) and has been operating microffnance services from
2075/12/01.

Head office of the Institution is located at Golbazar-07, Choharwa, Siraha, Nepal. Its ordinary shares are
listed with Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (Listing Date Dec 13, 2022) and its stock symbol is “SHLB”.

The Institution provides microfinance services such as loans and deposits to group members of low-
income families in Nepal.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Institution have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting, except the
cash flow information which is prepared on cash basis under direct method, in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal
and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
‘Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1  Statement of Compliance

The Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directives
for Micro-Finance Institutions.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The Institution has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRSs with effect from fiscal
year 2079/80. The financial statements have been prepared on following dates. ’

Relevant Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Comparative SFP* Date 31 Asar 2080 16 July 2023
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2079-31 Asar 2080 17 July 2022 -16 July 2023
Current SFP* Date ' 31 Asar 2081 15 July 2024
Current reporting period 1 Shrawan 2080- 31 Asar 2081 17 July 2023-15 July 2024

*SFP- Statement of Financial Position
) — K2
ﬂ\}& a / -
4 @

%
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2.3

24

24.1

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Institution’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where
indicated otherwise.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The Institution, under NFRSs, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, it is required to make judgments in respect of items
where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially
affect the financial statements.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements
and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

The NFRSs require the Institution to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements. The
Institution applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements and such estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in
the-period in which the estimates are revised, and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever
the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if
any.

_Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Institution is satisfied
that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the
Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions,
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Institution has prepared the opening statement of financial position as per Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRSs) as at 16 July 2021 (the transition date) by recognizing all assets and liabilities whose
recognition is required by NFRSs, not recognizing the items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted
by NFRSs, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRSs as required by NFRSs, and applying
NFRSs in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

New Standards in issue but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued
by IASB- after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when
ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet
effective, up to the date’ of issuance of the Institution’s financial statements are disclosed below. The
Financial Institution intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

New standards and interpretations not adopted

The updates on IFRS subsequent to 2018 become applicable when the ASB incorporates them within the
NFRS. The Financial Institution has not adopted those standards.

Discounting

When the realization of asset and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the financial
institution considers discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various

e i




2.9

31

3.2

internal and external factors have been considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the
cash flows of the entity.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available and/or it is impracticable to develop the information,
such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

Significant Accounting Policies .
Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:

¢ derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value
» financial instruments through fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value

e financial instruments through fair value through Other Comprehensive Income are measured at fair
value,

e investment property is measured at fair value

* the liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized
past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with B/FIs, money at call & short notice and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition dates
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Finance in the
management of its short-term commitments.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Recognition

The Institution initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial
Position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. It initially
recognizes loans and advances, deposits and debt securities/subordinated liabilities issued on the date that
they are originated, which is the date that the Institution becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond
or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Institution
commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Generally, purchase and sale of financial assets are
recognized on trade date at which the Institution commits to purchase or sell the asset.

@01 aiftie ufidca Uto 28



B. Classification
Financial Assets

The financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of its business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets.

The financial assets are classified under three categories as required under NFRS 9, as follows;

]

e  Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less
impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised
in Statement of Profit or Loss.

¢  Financial asset measured at fair value through Profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

¢  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial

assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are
recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (SOCI).

IL Financial Liabilities
The Financial Institution classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows;
e Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss.

e Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Bl aftie ufddaer to 24



C. Measurement
4 Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

il Subsequent Measurement -

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost
based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial asset or liability classified as
measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or un-collectability.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or
Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

3.3.1 'De-recognition

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Institution derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained
by the Institution is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to thé portion of the
asset transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

In transactions in which the Institution neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, it continues to recognize the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the
value of the transferred asset.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or
expired.-Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. \I B/
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3.3.2 Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Institution. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Institution uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All’assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At each reporting date, the Management analyzes the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Institution's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Institution has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above,

3.3.3 Impairment

At each reporting date the Institution assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have been
impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss
event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Institution considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
e Whether the counter party is in default of principal or interest payments.
*  When a counter party files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

o Where the Institution initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the
counterpart.
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e  Where the Institution consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial
obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

e Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific
individual financial assets.

The Institution considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment
securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and advances and
held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
identified.

Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test is done on annual basis for trade
receivables and other financial assets based on the internal and external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Institution uses historical trends of the probability of default, the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than
suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are
regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost
“As per NAS 39

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (such as amounts due from Banks, loans and advances to
customers as well as held—to—maturity investments are impaired, and impairment losses are recognized,
only if there is objective evidence as aresult of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the deemed recoverable value of loan.

All Loans and advances to customers are assessed for individual impairment test. The recoverable value
of loan is estimated on the basis of realizable value of collateral and the conduct of the borrower/past
experience of the Finance.

The Institution assumes all Loans and advances to be individually significant and hehce collective
impairment has not been provided.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the other reserves and funds (impairment reserve) in other
comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity. If a future write—off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the *Income Statement’.

As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on management’s
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum provisioning
level prescribed in relevant NRB guidelines. Provision is made for possible losses on loans and advances
including bills purchased at 1% to 100% on the basis of classification of loans and advances, overdraft

and bills purchased in accordance with NRB directives.
- - g&%
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3.4

3.6

3.7

The Institution has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as
per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NAS
39.

Trading Assets

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Institution acquires or incurs
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that
is managed together for short-term profit or position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value
in the statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. All changes in
fair value are recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss.

The Institution does not have any trading asset as on reporting date.

Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign
exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial
instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to
fair value at each reporting date.

The Institution does not have any derivative instrument during the reporting period.
Loan to staffs

The Financial Institution has a policy of providing loans to its employees at below-market interest rate.
This asset is bifurcated and recognized as two different elements viz. a prepaid employee benefit and a
loan asset. Initially fair value of employee loan is determined by discounting the future loan repayments
using a market rate of interest. This fair value is recognized as loan asset and any excess of the principal
loan amount over the fair value is recognized as deferred employee expenditure. Deferred employee
expenditure is amortized over the loan tenor with the amortization amount recognized as interest income
and a corresponding finance expense within the personnel expense.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at cost,
if, and only if:
* itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

e the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the following:

e the cost of materials and direct labor;

e any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use;
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e when the Institution has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and

» Capitalized borrowing costs.
The Institution adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither class of the property
and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.

The items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future econonfic benefits from the
expenditure will flow to the institution. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognized within other income in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.
b. Capital Work in Progress

Fixed assets under construction and cost of assets not ready for use are shown as capital work in progress.
[ De;‘lreciation

Depreciation is calculated using Diminishing Balance Method as per management judgement considering
less than 10% residual value of each group of assets at the end of estimated useful life as follows:

v Estimated Depreciation
P Useful Life (Diminishing Balance Method)
Eurmture, Office Equipment & 1 s 25 %
omputers
Vehicle 15 Years 20 %
Office Machinery 15 Years 15 %
Leasehold Lease Period
d. De-recognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition
of an item of property and equipment shall be included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized
(unless on a sale & lease back).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if
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3.8 Intangible Assets

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability
that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Institution, and are amortized on
the basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is
probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are
amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized
as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down
immediately.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date
thaf it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods is
five years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

3.9 Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and
equipment and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired by
the Institution as non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date.

The Institution holds investment property that has been acquired through enforcement of security over the
loans and advances.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the
disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they
are available-for-sale in their present condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets
and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies
described above.

The Institution does not have any Non-Current Assets Held for Sale as on reporting date.
3.10 Income Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.-
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3.11

3.12

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of
dividends.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Financial Institution as at the reporting date which is
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deposits, debts securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Deposits

The Institution accepts deposits from its customers under account, current and term deposit accounts
which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These transactions are recorded
on the Institution's books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the Institution and
represents the amount owed by the Institution to the customer.

Debt Securities Issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued by the Institution. Deposits, debt securities
issued and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective interest method, except where
the Institution designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The Institution has not issued any
debt securities.

Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the claims
of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The Institution does not have any of such
subordinated liabilities.

Provisions

The Institution recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, it has a present constructive or legal
obligation that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may-but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.
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A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Institution
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset
and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs. ‘

3.13  Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the ordinary
activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to
contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Institution and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized
during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The Institution’s revenue comprises
of interest income, fees and commission, and the bases of incomes recognition are as follows:

a. Interest Income

Interest income on available-for-sale assets and financial assets held at amortized cost shall be recognized
using the Institution’s normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate.

-For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges are not amortized over the life of the
loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have been
derived under effective interest rate method. The difference is not considered material. The Institution
considers that the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds the benefit that would
be derived from such compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability.

Further, Interest income on Loans and Advances is recognized as per the Guideline on recognition of
interest income, 2019 issued by NRB.

b. Fees & Commission Income

Fees and commissions income comprise fees and services collected on diverse ranges of services provided
by the Institution such as loan administrative, remittance and brokerage and other services.

c. Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive such dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading income, net income from other
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying
classification of the equity investment.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all
realized and unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to non-trading
derivatives held for risk management purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge relationships and
financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. It includes all realized and
unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.”

Interest expense

Interest expense is recognized in Profit or Loss using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rate is the rates that exactly discount estimated future cash payment through expected life of the financial
instrument or where appropriate a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.
While calculating the effective interest rate, the Institution estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument but excluding future credit gains. The calculation includes all amount
paid by the institution that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of the financial instrument,
incl'uding the transaction costs and other premium or discounts.

Fees & Commission Expenses

It includes payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the Institution such as card
related fees, guarantee commission, brokerage expenses etc. The fees and commission expense that are

-integral to the effective interest rate on the financial liability are included in the measurement of the

effective interest rate and are not recognized as expense under this head.
Employees Benefits/Personnel Expenses
Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus
required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period):

e wages, salaries and social security contributions,
* paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
e profit-sharing and bonuses and

¢ non-monetary benefits

Post-Employment Benefits

Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings:
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i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Institution pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expenses in profit
or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

All employees of the Institution are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Institution contribute monthly at a pre-determined
rate of 10% of the basic salary. The Institution does not assume any future liability for provident fund
benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Institution’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service
costs and the fair value of any plan assets all actuarial are deducted.

The Institution recognizes gains and losses net of deferred tax arising from defined benefit plans
immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee
benefit expense in profit or loss.

The Institution recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement comprises any resulting
change in the fair value of plan assets, any change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation,
any related actuarial gains and losses and any past service cost that had not previously been recognized.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is to be performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. However, as the Financial Institution considers the possibility of its merger in near
future and the employees liability existing at the time are to be settled for a fresh start in the new
organization, no actuarial valuation has been performed for time being as it is more beneficial for the
institution.

iii. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Institution is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before
the normal retirement date. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then they
are discounted to their present value.

3.17 Leases

NFRS 16 requires lessees to recognize a right to use asset and a liability for future payments arising from
a lease contract.
. ‘pr
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Complying with the standard, the institution has recognized the future payments arising from its rental
lease contrasts as a ‘right-of-use-asset’ and an associated liability at the commencement date of the lease.
The lease liability has been initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date. The discount rate used to determine present value is the rate of interest implicit
in the lease.

= The right-of-use-asset includes the following amounts:
* the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability.

* any payments made to the lessor at, or before, the commencement date of the lease, less any lease
incentives received

= any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee

* an estimate of any costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, or restoring the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use-asset is subsequently depreciated. Depreciation is over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term, unless the title to the asset transfers at the end of the lease term, in which case
depreciation is over the useful life.

The lease liability is effectively treated as a financial liability which is measured at amortized cost, using
the rate of interest implicit in the lease as the effective interest rate.

3.18  Foreign Currency Translation

_The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates if held at historical cost, or
year-end exchange rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in either the statement of profit or loss or shareholders’ equity depending on the treatment of
the gain or loss on the asset or liability.

3.19 Financial guarantee and loan commitment

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Institution to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-
specified terms and conditions.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Institution has confirmed its intention to provide funds to
a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Institution has not made payments at the reporting date, those
instruments are included in this financial statement as commitments.
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3.20

3.21

3.22

Share Capital and Reserves

The Institution classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total
assets of the institution after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the
institution and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are
declared.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

The reserves include retained earnings and other Statutory reserves such as general reserve, foreign
exchange equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, investment adjustment reserve, staff training and
development fund, CSR reserve etc.

Earnings per share including diluted

The Institution presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Institution by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Segment Reporting

The Institution has not identified any key segments of the business on the basis of nature of operations
that assist the Institution in decision process and to allocate the resources. Therefore, segment reporting is
not done by the Institution.

Schedules forming part of Financial Statements

Schedules are attached with financial statements.
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash in hand

Balances with BFls

Money at call and short notice
Other

Total

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances with NRB

Statutory balances with BFls

Securities purchased under resale agreement
Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total

4.3 Placement with Financial Institutions

Placement with domestic Fls
Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

4.4 Derivative financial instruments

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
* Others

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap

Currency swap A2 Wl
Forward exchange contract /.~
Others T<
Total A

2 b V=
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209,728 2,276,857
92,478,277 143,491,838
92,688,006 145,768,695
As at As at

31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

13,845,785 31,904,693
13,845,785 31,904,693
As at As at

31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080




Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.5

4.6

4.6.1

Other trading assets

Tresury bills

Government bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged

Non-Pledged

Loan and advances to MFIs & Cooperatives

Loans to microfinance institutions
Loans to Fis

Loans to cooperative

Less: Allowances for impairment
Other

Less: Allowances for impairment
Total

Allowances for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off

Balances at Ashad end

As at
31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080

As at
31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080
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4.7

Loans and Advances to Customers

Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

Less: Impairment allowances

4.71

Collective impairment
Individual impairment

Net amount

Loan and advance measured at FVTPL
Interest Receivable

Total

Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Product

Term loans

Short term, term loan

Long term, term loan

Hire purchase loans
Personal Residential Loans
Staff loans

Other

Sub Total
Interest Receivable
Grand Total

As at
31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080

2,390,941,399

(202,305,146)

2,386,579,134

(202,616,650)

2,188,636,252

2,183,962,483

4,370,698

4,325,643

2,193,006,950

2,188,288,126

As at
31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080

78,567,924
2,304,362,231

3,741,898
4,269,346

67,085,243
2,307,461,473
7,072,098
4,960,320

2,390,941,399

2,386,579,134

4,370,698

4,325,643

2,395,312,096

2,390,904,776
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4.7.2 Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Secured

Immovable assets 455,931 1,612,899

Government guarantee

Collateral of Government securities

Collateral of Fixed Deposit receipt

Collateral Government securities

Group guarantee 2,386,216,122 2,380,105,915

Personal guarantee 4,269,346 4,960,320

Other collateral )
Subtotal 2,390,941,399 2,386,579,134
Unsecured -
Interest Receivable 4,370,698 4,325,643
Grand Total 2,395,312,096 2,390,904,776

4.7.3 Allowances for impairment
As at As at
' 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 202,616,650 150,214,037
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year (311,504) 52,402,613

Recoveries/reversal during the year
Wirite-offs
Other movement
Balance at Asar end 202,305,146 202,616,650

Q0! aiffes ufddcer Ut 89



Additional Disclosures

4.7.5 Financial Assets classification as per NFRS 7

Financial Asssets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial Assets at amortised cost

Financial Assets measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Total

4.7.6 Collateral Disclosures (NFRS 7para 14)

Pledged
Non-Pledged
Total

As at
31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080

2,390,941,399

2,386,579,134

2,390,941,399

2,386,579,134

As at
31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080

2,390,941,399

2,386,579,134

2,390,941,399

2,386,579,134

4.7.7 Interest Pertaining to Impaired Financial Assets as per NFRS 7 20d

4.7.8

4.7.8
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Classes of Fair value measurement as per NFRS 13.94

Financial Assets classification as per NFRS 7

The Institution holds promoter equity shares in following companies. Since the shares in following entities are
unquoted, and there is a restriction on disinvestment of shares by the Bank as this is a strategic investment, there
is @ wide range of possible fair value measurements. Consequently, the management of the Bank has concluded
that cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range:

Number of Shares

Particulars As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Karja Suchana kendra
Nepal Clearing House Limited

The following table presents the Institution’s financial instruments, which are held at the fair value, The table also
presents the valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of those financial instruments, the significant
unobservable inputs, and the range of values for those inputs.

Instrument Significant unobservable Inputs

Corporate securities:
Quoted Securities
Unquoted Securities

Market price as on date
Bogk Value/Cost Price

Uto 82



Valuation technique under Level 3 Measurement required as per NFRS 13.91

Fair value Level 3 disclosures

The following sets out the basis of establishing fair values of amortised cost financial instruments. These are not
generally traded and there is a significant level of management judgement involved in calculating the fair values.

Cash and balances with central banks

* The fair value of cash and balances at central banks is their carrying amounts.

4.7.2

Dues from BFis

For Placemnet to banks, the estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash
flows using the prevailing money market rates for debts with a similar credit risk and remaijning maturity period.
These are generally the carrying amount of these assets.

Loans and advances to customers

The loans and advances to customers portfolio is well diversified by industry. The fair value of loans and advances
to customers with a residual maturity period of less than one year generally approximates the carrying value,
subject to any significant movement in credit spreads. The estimated fair value of loans and advances with a
residual maturity of more than one year represents the discounted amount of future cash flows expected to be
received, including assumptions relating to prepayment rates and, where appropriate, credit spreads. Expected
cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value. The rates for discounting for the purpose
of fair value measurement closely approximates the effective interest rate inherent in the instruments therefore the
carrying value represents the fair value.

Investment Securities
Investment securities those measured at level three include treasury bills and government bond.

Others financial assets

These assets are generally with the residual maturity of less than one year. The impact of discounted cash flows of
those assets having maturity period of less than one year is insignificant. Therefore the fair value of other assets
generally approximates the carrying amount.

Deposits and borrowings

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity period is the amount repayable on demand. The
estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits and other borrowings without quoted market prices is based
on discounting cash flows using the prevailing market rates for debts with a similar credit risk and remaining
maturity period.

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets and liabilities have been classified in accordance with the requirements of NFRS. These have
been presented consistently and there have been no reclassifications since 15 July 2016, when financial
instruments were restated under first time adoption of NFRS.

Analysis of loan and advance- By Currency

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Nepalese rupee ' 2,390,941,399 2,386,579,134
Indian rupee
usb
GBP
Euro
JPY
Chinese Yuan
Other
Total"

2,390,941,399 2,386,579,134

{

S
7

_/'/ — V7.

40 o it



Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.8

4.8.1

4.8.2

Investment Securities

Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

Total

Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

As at
31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080

25,046 344,953
25,046 344,953
As at As at

31 Asar 2081

31 Asar 2080

Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities

Total

ol aifitfe ufcdga

As at
31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080

25,046

344,953
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

As at As at

4.8 Current fax assats 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Current tax assets .
Current year income tax assets 250,777 5,814,726
Tax assets of prior periods 15,658,526 17,581,589
Total 15,909,303 23,396,315
Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 6,845,498 7,426,203
Tax liabilities of prior periods -
Total 6,845,498 7,426,203
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.10  Investment properties
As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Addition/disposal during the year -
Net changes in fair value during the year =
Adjustmentitransfer

Net amount = y

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance at the befinning of the year 2
Addition/disposal during the year -
Adjustment/transfer -
Accumulated depreciation =
Accumulated impairment loss -
Net amount - -
Total - -

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non current assets
held for sale under relevant accounting standard are presented under this account head. This includes
land, land and building acquired as non banking assets by the Bank but not sold.

V'
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Software
iculars Oth
TN Goodwill Purchased Developed il Tatal

Cost
Balance as on Asar end 2079 - 113,721 - - 113,720.77
Addition during the Year =
Acquisition ) § 5 . .
Capitalization - - - & =
Disposals during the year - - = - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - s 5 : -

Balance as on Asar end 2080 - 113,721 - " - 113,721

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposals during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 2081 - 113,721 - - 113,721

Amortization and Impairment

As on Asar end 2079 E 22,806 - - 22,806
Amortization charge for the Year - 18,183 - - 18,183
Disposals + - - = = -
Adjustment - e * - =

As on Asar end 2080 - 40,989 - - 40,989

Amortization charge for the Year 14,546 14,546
Disposals .
Adjustment =

As on Asar end 2081 - 55,536 - - 55,536

Capital Work in Progress

Net Book Value
As on Asar end 2080 - 72,731 = - 72,731
As on Asar end 2081 - 58,185 - - 58,185
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.13 Deferred tax

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

Deferred tax assets
' Deferred tax liabilities

FY 2080-81

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to BiFls

Loan and advances to customers

Investment Properties

Investment Securities

Property & Equipment

Employees' defined benefit plan

Employees' Leave Provision

Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 31 Asar 2081
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2080
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss
Defefred tax expensel(income) recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expensel/(income recognised in directly in equity

FY 2079-80

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loan and advances to customers

Investment Properties

Investment Securities

Property & Equipment

Employees' defined benefit plan

Employees' Leave Provision

Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 31 Asar 2080
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2079
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income recognised in directly in equity

ol aifitfe ufcdga

As at As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080 32 Asar 2079
2,174,483 3,304,441 6,359,534
2,174,483 3,304,441 6,359,534
Current Year
Deferred Tax Deferrad Tax Net Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
52,774 52,774
2,924 (2,924)
- (1,522,247) 1,522,247
(109,724) A (109,724)
59,207 - 59,207
3,239,038 2,533,360 705,678
3,188,520 1,014,037 2,174,483
2,174,483
(3,304 ,441)
(1,129,958)
1,129,907
50
Previous Year
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Net Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assetsi/(Liabilities)
73,011 73,011 _
- 86,506 (86,508)
- (239,358) 239,358
1,067,156 - 1,067,156
1,762,882 - 1,762,882
2,989,806 2,668,256 321,550
5,819,844 2,515,403 3,304,441
3,304,441
(6,359,534)
(3,055,094)
3,063,836

(8,742)



Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.14 Other Assets

As at As at

Other Assets 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Asset Held for Sale -
Other non banking assets -
Bills receivable ’ -
Accounts receivable 4,672,320 10,769,664
Accrued income -
Prepayments and Deposit 1,230,572 797,033
Deferred employee expenditure 175,915 243,370
Other 3,562,426

Stationary stock 1,210,640

Branch reconciliation account 35,817

Staff advance 1,470,754

Insurance commission receivable 780,882
Total 9,576,900 15,372,494

This account include any other tangible or intangible asset not mentioned specifically in other

heads. Assets held for sale, non banking assets (other than land or land and building), accounts
receivable, interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments and deposit are some of the items
to be included under this head.
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.15 Due to Banks and Financial Institutions

Borrowing from National BFls
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other

Total

4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last resort facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreement
Other payable to NRB

Total

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as
other amount due to bank and financial institution is presented under this account head. This
account head also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount payable to NRB
shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort, sale

and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

As at As at

4.17 Derivative financial instruments 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Held for trading

Interest rate swap :
Currency Swap 2
Forward exchange contract -
Others .
Held for risk management

Interest rate swap i
Currency Swap *
Forward exchange contract -
Other 2
Total s =

&0l aiftfe ufddcer oo Y3



Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

418 Deposits from customers

Particulars As:at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Institutions customers: 5
Term deposits =
Call deposits =
Other : -
Individual customers: 761,835,870 823,021,087
Term deposits 460,346 576,466
Saving deposits 761,375,524 822,444 621
Savings from Members -
Other -
' Total 761,835,870 823,021,087
4,181 Currency Wise Analysis of Deposit from Customer
Particulars Asat sl
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Nepalese rupee 761,835,870 823,021,087
Indian rupee -
United States Dollar .
Great Britain Pound -
Euro =
Japanese Yen : -
Chinese yuan .
Other .
Total 761,835,870 823,021,087
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.19

4.20

4.20.1

Borrowing

Particulars

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government

Other Licensed Institution
Other

Subtotal

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions

Sub total

Total

Provisions
Particulars

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Provision for Employee Training
Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contracts

Other

Total

Movement in provision

Particulars

Balance at Shrawan 1

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount -

Balance at Asar end

ol aifif® ufddga

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

1,106,893,338 1,231,361,962

1,106,893,338 1,231,361,962

1,106,893,338 1,231,361,962

As at As at

31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
As at ' As at

31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080




Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.21

4.21.1

4.21.2

Other Liabilities

Particulars

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations
Liability for long-service leave
Short-term employee benefits
Bills payable
Creditors and accruals
Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on defered grant income
Unpaid Dividend
Liabilities under Finance Lease
Employee bonus payable
Audit Fee Payable
Employee Welfare Fund
Employee Health Fund
Organization Development Fund
Srijana Samudayak Bikas Kendra
Lease Liability
Other
TDS payable
Pre-recovery account
Member security fund
Service charge refundable
Telephone & internet payable
Restructure saving
Total

Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Particulars

Present value of funded obligation

Total Present value of obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligation

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations

Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise

Particulars

Equity securities
Government bonds

L \Bank deposit

ol aifitfe ufcdga

31 Asar 2081

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
14,687,744 15,053,492
9,019,780 8,822,424
10,851,894 9,469,855
360 360
86,652,337 6,741
2,529,048 296,465
440,700 282,500
1,253,711 1,178,544
785,383 790,074
11,718,369 11,718,369
83,017,179 83,717,179
10,796,793 9,966,019
9,461,861
963,600
87,591
1,740,667
4749 847
2,090
133,153
239,430,246 150,763,883
As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
As at As at

31 Asar 2080

N



4.21.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 .
Acturial losses
Benefits paid by the plan
Current service costs and interest
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end - -

Particulars

4.21.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Asat As at

31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 -
Contributions paid into plan
Benefits paid during the year
Acturial (losses) gains
Expected return on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end - -

Particulars

.

4.21.5 Amount recognized in profit or loss

As at As at

Particulars 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets -
Total - -

4.21.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

As at As at

Particul
aruediere 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Acturial (gain)/loss -

Total i -

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Discount rate ' 0%
Expected return on plan assets
Future salary increase 0%
Withdrawal rate
Past service: 0-<3
Past service: 3-<7
Past service: 7-<15
Past service:15-<20
Past service:>=20

Actuarial assumptions

4.21.7

Uto Yu



Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4,22 Debt securities issued

i As at As at
Pariculars 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Debt securities issued designated at fair value through .
profit or loss i
Debt securities issued at amortized cost -
Total i g

4.23  Subordinated Liabilities

, As at As at

Farticytars 31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Redeemable preference shares -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilites

component)

Other =

Total . .

A0\ aiie ufddca gto YT



Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.24 Share Capital
As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Ordinary Shares 109,375,000 109,375,000
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only) ; -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) -
Total 109,375,000 109,375,000
4.24.1 Ordinary Shares
As at As at

31 Asar 2081

31 Asar 2080

Authorised capital

2,000,000 Ordinary Shares @ Rs. 100 each 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued capital

10,93,750 Ordinary Shares @ Rs. 100 each 100,000,000 100,000,000
Subscribed and paid up capital

10,93,750 Ordinary Shares @ Rs. 100 each 109,375,000 109,375,000
Total 109,375,000 109,375,000

4.24.2 Ordinary share ownership
As at As at

31 Asar 2081

31 Asar 2080

Domestic ownership (Promoter) 109,375,000
Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institutions 10,000,000
Other licensed institutions =
Other institutions 46,700,000
Other 13,300,000
Domestic ownership (Public)

Nepal Government B
"A" class licensed institutions -
Other licensed institutions ®
Other institutions -
Other 39,375,000
Foreign ownership promoter
Foreign ownership public

109,375,000

10,000,000
46,700,000
13,300,000

39,375,000

Total 109,375,000

109,375,000

e g P x s
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.25

Reserves

Particulars

Statutory general reserve
Capital reserve

Exchange equalization reserve
Investment adjustment reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Client Protection Fund

Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve

Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve

Dividend equalization reserve
Actuarial gain

Special reserve

Other reserve

Total

General Reserve

As at

31 Asar 2081

As at
31 Asar 2080

61,250,511 58,442,743
554,108 486,424
45,142,442 44,272,228
4,928,022 6,029,596
9,746 288,353
111,884,830 109,519,343

There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve until the reserve
is twice the paid of share capital and thereafter minimum 10% of the net profit. The reserve is the

accumulation of setting aside of profits over the years.

Exchange Equilization Reserve

There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 25% of the foreign exchange revaluation gain on the
translation of foreign currency to the reporting currency. The reserve is the accumulation of such gains

over the years.

Corporate social responsibility reserve
There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 1% of the net profit to CSR reserve.

ol aifitfe ufcdga
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Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.26 Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080
Contingent liabilities -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities -
Capital commitment -
Lease Commitment -
Litigation : -
Others -

Total " =

4.26.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made
in financial statements

Bank

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Capital commitments in relation to Property

and Equipment

Approved and contracted for -
Approved but not contracted for -

Sub total = E

Capital commitments in relation to

Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for -
Approved but not contracted for -

Sub total s i,
Total - -

Q3! e ufddger Uts &9



4.26.2 Lease commitments

As at As at
31 Asar 2081 31 Asar 2080

Operating lease commitments -
Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the institution -
is lessee

Not later than 1 year 5

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years -

Later than 5 years .

Sub total - -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non

cancellable operating lease, where the institution

is lessee _

Not later than 1 year -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years -
Later than 5 years &

Sub total a -

Grand total = 3

4.26.3 Litigation

Explanatory paragraphs are required for ligitation contingent liabilities as per their own case
of each institution.

@t aiftf ufddger Uto &2



Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

427  Interest Income
Current Year Previous Year
Cash and cash equivalent -
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank -
Placement with bank and financial institutions 2,971,051 1,674,745
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions -
Loans and advances to customers 309,868,967 346,639,165
Investment securities .
Loan and advances to staff 782,930 425752
Other i,
Total interest income 313,622,948 348,739,662
4.28 Interest Expense
Current Year Previous Year
Due to bank and financial institutions 141,887,286 169,132,214
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -
Deposits from customers 60,693,817 53,392,150
Debt securities issued -
Subordinated liabilities -
Other 3,216,274 1,170,759
Interest on employee welfare fund 79,123 73,510
Interest on lease liability 3,137,151 1,087,249
Total interest expense 205,797,377 223,695,123
429 Fees and Commission Income
Current Year Previous Year
Loan administration fees
Service fees 14,391,649 25,163,045
Commitment fees
Credit issuance fees
Prepayment and swap fees
Remittance fees
Brokerage fees
Other fees and commission income
Penalty & other fees income 4,737,193
Insurance commission income 1,298,608
Miscellaneous income 2,674,225
Total fees and Commission Income 23,101,674 25,163,045
430 Fees and Commission Expense
Current Year Previous Year
Brokerage -
ATM management fees -
VISA Master card fees -
Guarantee commission fees -
Brokerage -
DD/TT/Swift fees -
Remittance fees and commission =
Other fees and commission expense 17,169
Total fees and Commission Expense 17,169

-




4.31  Net Trading Income

Current Year Previous Year
Changes in fair value of trading assets =
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets -
Interest income on trading assets -
Dividend income on trading assets =
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction 5
Other -
Net trading income . &

4.32  Other Operating Income

Current Year Previous Year
Foreign exchange revauation gain -
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties -
Dividend on equity instruments -
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment -
Gain/loss on sale of investment property =
Operating lease income “
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver -
Other -
Total - -

4.33  Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses

Current Year Previous Year

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls B
‘Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer (311,504) 52,402,613
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties -
Total (311,504) 52,402,613

4.34  Personnel Expenses

Current Year Previous Year
Salary 57,185,171 61,823,188
Allowances 11,780,518 = 12,389,139
Gratuity expense 1,074,356 14,763,115
Provident fund 4,618,787 4,469,717
Uniform 1,870,833 1,750,000
Training & development expense 2,822,888 2,535,272
Leave encashment 1,443,767 3,354 143
Medical 300 4,059
Insurance . 2,739,772 1,573,616
Employees incentive -
Cash-settled share-based payments -
Pension expense -
Finance expense under NFRS 380,706 38,182
Other expenses related to staff 1,008,945 454,563
Subtotal - 84,926,043 103,154,993
Employees bonus 2,232,583 -
Grand total 87,158,626 103,154,993
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4.35

4.351

Other Operating Expenses
Current Year Previous Year

Directors' fee 235,000 187,500
Directors' expense 85,380 360,489
Auditors' remuneration 440,700 282,500
Other audit related expense 21,700 144,300
Professional and legal expense 179,727 -
Office administration expense 13,837,123 15,519,222
Operating lease expense & -
Operating expense of investment properties =
Corporate social responsibility expense =
Client Protection expenses -
Onerous lease provisions d -
Other -
Total 14,499,630 16,494,011

Office Administration Expense

Current Year

Previous Year

Water and electricity 634,273 610,995
Repair and maintenance
(a) Building -
(b) Vehicle 119,407 145,470
(C) Computer and accessories -
(d) Office equipment and furniture 308,177 176,060
(e) Other 182,410 376,935
Insurance 396,833 733,604
Postage telex, telephone, fax 1,377,852 1,412,255
Printing and stationery 1,290,239 1,126,680
News paper, books and journals 4,096 22,340
Advertisement 139,718 180,825
Donations -
Security expense 304,822 609,228
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 178,769 -
Travelling allowance and expenses 1,706,364 1,551,473
Entertainment Expenses 49,430.00 42,058
Annual/special general meeting expense 142,265.00 248,992
Other
(a) Non-durable goods -
(b) Registration & renewal 268,362 468,726
(c) Fuel expenses 3,275,847 3,994,448
(d) Software expenses 2,428 164 2,384,689
(e) Share issue expenses 160,000 780,918
(f) Merger & acquisition expenses 449 963
(g) Office maintenance and janatorial expenses 579,097 203,564
(h) Covid Response Expenses -
Total 13,637,123 15,519,222
Q:.’ < P
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4.36 Depreciation & Amortization

Current Year

Previous Year

Depreciation on property and equipment 7,222,945 8,263,054
Depreciation on investment property -

Amortization of intangible assets 14,546 18,183
Total 7,237,491 8,281,237

4.37  Non Operating Income
Current Year Previous Year
Recovery of loan written off =
Other income = 4
Total = =
4.38 Non Operating Expense
Current Year Previous Year
Loan written off -
Redundancy provision -
Expense of restructuring -
Other expense -
Total = =
4.39 Income tax expense
Current Year Previous Year
Current tax expense 7,157,083 7,691,660
“Current year 6,845,498 7,426,203
Adjustments for prior years 311,586 265,457
Deferred tax expense 1,129,907 3,063,836
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,129,907 3,063,836
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 8,286,991 10,755,496
4.39.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Current Year Previous Year
Profit before tax 22,325,833 (30,178,733)
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 6,697,750 (9,053,020)
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 2,308,412 18,579,542
Less: Tax effect on exempt income & =
Add/less: Tax effect on other items (1,849,078.31) (1,834,862)
Total income tax expense 7,157,083 7,691,660
il
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5.1

Disclosures & Additional Information
Risk Management

Risk is inherent in the Institution’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The Institution is mainly exposed
to;

e Liquidity Risk

¢ Interest Rate Risk
e Credit Risk

e Operational Risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Institution’s
risk management framework. Risk management committee has been established to facilitate focused
oversight of various risks. The committee reviews the risk management policies as well as the Institution’s
compliance with NRB Directives.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Institution will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity
risk arises because of the possibility that the Institution might be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances.

Liquidity has been actively monitored at an appropriate frequency. Routine reporting, trend analysis,
budget variance analysis was in place to the Board of Directors through Assets Labilities Management
Committee (ALCO) and Risk Management Committee. Daily MIS, daily liquidity sheet, CRR report and
monthly liquidity gap report have been used for the insight of liquidity risk information to the management.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price. Our
exposure to interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The Institution
focuses on risk management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, also
by addressing interest rate risk in regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The interest rate risk
is managed within the risk tolerances and market rate risk set by ALCO.

Credit Risk
The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained
from Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which has been

used by Institution, includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers’
background, business and experience, financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis

etc.
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Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error,
fraud or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or lead to financial loss.

Effective operational risk management system aims to minimize losses and customer dissatisfaction due
to failure in processes, focusing on flows in products and their design that can expose the Institution to
losses due to fraud, analyzing the impact of failures in technology/system, developing plans to meet
external shocks that can adversely impact continuity in the Institution’s operations. The Institution needs
“a comprehensive operational risk monitoring and reporting framework” as well as “output checking” at
all branches covering all transactions on daily basis to minimize operational risk.

One of the growing risks among others these days is Operation Risk that arises out of inefficient processes
and people inside and outside the Institution. Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is the
management committee where operation risk, market risk and other risks are discussed, in line with ALM
Policy. IT Department in the Institution reviews and checks the security aspects in line with IT Policy of
the Institution. The Institution needs to conduct an IS Audit to ensure the effectiveness of implemented
controls framework and adequacy of the adopted security plan and procedures.

The Institution has separate department to oversee operation risk including compliance of KYC and AML.
This department is headed by senior level staff with adequate access to the daily report, operational
processes and right to recommend the changes in the system and procedures.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and
liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and
liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the
objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same — to estimate the price at which an orderly
transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the
perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability). Fair values are determined
according to the following hierarchy:

Level-1 inputs

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. Held for trading investments and quoted securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through OCI have been recorded using Level 1 inputs.

Level-2 inputs

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. Such observable inputs include:

® Quoted price for similar instruments in active market
* Quoted price for identical or similar instruments in inactive market
* Financial instruments are valued using models where all significant inputs,are observable
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5.2

5:2.1

Level-3 inputs

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Fair value measurements are derived using
valuation techniques in which current market transactions or observable market data are not available.
Under this, instruments are fair valued using valuation models which have been tested against prices or
inputs to actual market transactions and make use of the best estimates of the most appropriate model
assumptions. The institution has used latest audited financial statements to arrive at book value for
investment in unquoted shares.

-

Capital Management

Qualitative disclosures

Capital is very crucial component in a business. In case of Financial Institutions, sufficient capital needs
to be maintained for business growth. Capital management approach is driven by its desire to maintain a
strong capital base to support the business growth and to meet the regulatory capital requirements. Capital
planning is an integral part of the Institution’s strategic plan. The Financial Institution has robust capital
planning and management to meet its projected growth over the upcoming years during the normal as well
as stressed situations. The Institution ensures that adequate level of capital is maintained at all times. It is
well capitalized and is able to maintain required capital through internal generation and also through other
sources, if required.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures

a)

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components

Particulars Amount (NPR ‘000)

Paid up Capital 1,09,375.00

Share Premium / Capital Reserve

Proposed Bonus Shares

Statutory General Reserve 61,250.51

Retained Earnings 5,709.03

Current Year Cumulative Profit

Capital Redemption Reserve

Other Free Reserves

Less: Goodwill & Intangible Assets (58.19)

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized

Less: Loans & Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending

n
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Less: Investment in excess of limit in shares or debentures (25.05)

Core (Tier-1) Capital 176,251.31
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iii.

iv.

vi.

vii.

Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components

S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR ‘000)
A | General Loan Loss Provision 37,866.10
B | Additional Loan Loss Provision 8,833.98
C | Exchange Equalization Reserve i
D | Investment Adjustment Reserve -
E | Other Reserves # -
Supplementary (Tier-2) Capital 41,108.93

Deductions from capital

Goodwill & intangible assets, deferred tax assets and investment in excess of limit in shares or
debentures have been deducted from capital.

Total qualifying capital

S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR ‘000)
A Core Capital 176,251.31
B Supplementary Capital 41,108.93
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 217,360.24
Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Institution as at 15 July 2024 stood as:

S.N. Particulars Current Year
A Total Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 7.07%
B Total Capital Fund to Total Risk Weighted Exposure 8.72%

Summary of Financial Institution’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable .

The Institution does not have any internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support current
and future activities.

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of capital instruments

Ordinary share capital: The Institution has only one class of equity shares having a par value of NPR. 100
per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the
Institution, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Institution after
distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.
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b) Risk Exposures

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

S.N. | Risk Weighted Exposure Amount (NPR ‘000)
A Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 2,440,926.20
B Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 50,523.90
C Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
Adjustments under Pillar I1 .
Add 3% of the total RWE due to non-compliance to disclosure
requirement
Add ...% of the total deposit due to insufficient liquid assets
Total Risk Weighted Exposure 2,491,450.10
5.2.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
5.3.1 Classification-Financial Assets
Fair Value | Fair Value
Financial Assets o | e |eemis| e
(FVTOCI) | (FVTPL)
Cash and Cash equivalent 92,688,006 - - 92,688,006
Statutory Balances & Due from NRB 13,845,785 - - 13,845,785
. Placement with BFIs - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - -
Other Trading Assets - - -
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - - E “
Loans and Advances to Customers 2,193,006,950 - - 2,193,006,950
Investment Securities - 25,046 - 25,046
Current Tax Assets 15,909,303 - - 15,909,303
Other Assets 9,576,900 - - 9,576,900
Total Financial Assets 2,325,026,943 25,046 - 2,325,051,989
Financial Liabilities
Due to BFIs - - B
Due to NRB - - - -
Derivative Financial Instrument - - - -
Deposits from Customers 761,835,870 B - 761,835,870
Borrowing 1,106,893,338 - - 1,106,893,338
Current Tax Liabilities 6.845,498 - - 6,845,498
Other Liabilities 239,430,246 - - 239,430,246
Debt Securities Issued & - & &
Total Financial Liabilities 2,115,004,952 - B 2,115,004,952

5.4

Segment Analysis

The Institution has not identified any key segments of the business on the basis of nature of operations
that assist the Institution in decision process and to allocate the resources. Therefore, segment reporting is

not done by the Institution.
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55 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

5.5.1 Contingent liabilities

Where the Institution undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such
as for performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit as part of the Institution’s transaction banking
business for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included
in these financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of
customers to customs, for bids or offers.

The Institution does not have any Contingent Liability as on the reporting date.

5.5.2 Commitments

Where the Institution has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer
in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the
Institution has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial
statements as commitments,

The Institution does not have any Commitments as on the reporting date.

Explanatory Notes

-The Institution seeks to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, but may be subject to regulatory
actions and investigations, the outcome of which are generally difficult to predict and can be material to
the Institution.

In addition to these matters, the Institution may receive legal claims against it in the normal course of
business. The Institution considers none of these claims as material. Where appropriate, the Institution
recognizes a provision for liabilities when it is probable that an outflow of economic resources embodying
economic benefits will be required and for which a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation(s).

5.6 Related Party Disclosures

5.6.1 Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel of the Institution including members of the Board of Directors, Chief
Executive Officer and other executive level staffs, as follows:

Name Designation
Raj Kumar Shrestha Chairman
Renuka Kumari Shrestha Director
Niva Shrestha Director
Babita Shrestha Director
Manoj Mohan Pradhan Director
Binish Subedi Director
Batuk Shamsher Shrestha Chief Executive Officer
Sushil Kumar Singh Deputy CEO

B0t aiffe ufddcar Ut 12



5.6.3

5.6.4

5.6.5

5.6.6

5.8

Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and Restricted Lending
The Institution has not extended any loans to Related Parties during the year.
Loans and Advances extended to Promoters:

The Institution has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.

Transaction with Board of Director of the Financial Institution

Amount in NPR.
Nature of Transaction Current Year
Meeting Allowances (including committee meeting fee) 235,000.00
Meeting Expenses, Telephone, Mobile & Newspapers/Magazines 85,380.00

Remuneration and facilities to Chief Executive Officer of the Financial Institution

Categories Chief Executive Officer
a) Salary & Allowances 2,279,320.00
b) Annual Leaves including sick leave Yes
"¢)  Bonus as per Bonus Act Yes
d) Gratuity, Provident Fund, Medical Benefit Yes

Transactions with substantial shareholder

The Institution doesn’t have any transactions with substantial shareholder.

Management and Technical Service Agreement (TSA)

The Institution does not have any Management and Technical Service Agreement (TSA).
Merger and Acquisition

There are no merger or acquisitions transaction during the year.

Additional Disclosures of non-consolidated entities

The Institution doesn’t have any Subsidiary(s) as on the reporting date. Hence, there are no such entities
which are required to be consolidated but not done during the year.
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5.9 Events after reporting date

The Institution monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and /
or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books
with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with possible
financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 15 July 2024 till the signing of this financial
statement.

Other Explanatory Notes
6.1 Impairment

The Financial Institution has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount
derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as
Collective Impairment as per NAS 39.

Pdrticulars 2080/81 2079/80

LLP as per NRB Directives (a) 202,305,146 202,616,650
Individual Impairment as per NFRS - -
Collective Impairment as per NFRS 49,337,593 72,213,229
Total Impairment as per NFRS (b) 49,337,593 72,213,229
Charged to P & L (Higher of a & b) 202,305,146 202,616,650

6.2 Investment Properties/ Non-Banking Assets
The Financial Institution has no Investment Properties or Non-Banking Assets.
6.3 Earnings per share
The Financial Institution measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity

shareholders for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for
the relevant period as required by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

. . Year ended Year ended
Particulars Units 15-Jul-24 16-Jul23
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) NPR 14,038,843 | (4,09,32,229)
Welghtf:d average of pu:nber of equity shares used in Nos. 1,093,750 | 10,34,579.92
computing basic earnings per share (b)

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs 100
eachi{alb) Rs 12.84 (39.56)

As there is no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS and
diluted EPS are equal for the period presented.

6.4 Unpaid Dividends

As at the reporting date, the financial institution has no unpaid dividend.
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6.5

6.6

6.7

Particulsrs 2080/81 2079/80
Opening Balance 44,272,228 44,080,127
| Transfer to fund during the year 140,388
Interest earned during the year 1,948,770 2,586,721
Expenses during the year 1,218,944 2,394,620
Closing Balance 45,142,442 44,272,228

Regulatory Reserve

As per the NRB Directive 4, the Financial Institution is required to credit an amount equal to the
adjustments made as per NFRS while preparing Opening Statement of Financial Position and NFRS
compliant financial statements of succeeding years to the Regulatory Reserve The amount shall be
transferred from Retained Earning to the Regulatory Reserve in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
Accordingly, the Financial Institution has credited the following amounts:

Particulars 2080/81 . 2079/80
Opening Balance 6,029,596 8,490,004

Transfer to/from reserve for transfer of Interest
Suspense to Interest Income & Deferred Tax (1,101,573) (2,460,408)

Closing Balance 4,928,022 6,029,596

Client Protection Fund

As per NRB Directive No. 4 on Client Protection Fund, the institution is required to set aside prescribed
amount of net profit to the client protection fund and utilize the fund in the common interest of its
customers, education and development, etc. The institution has not appropriated any amount to the fund
due to net loss during the year. Detail of client protection fund is as follows:

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

As per NRB Directive No. 6 on Corporate Social Responsibility Fund, the institution is required to set
aside prescribed amount of net profit to the corporate social responsibility fund and utilize the fund for
social activities. The institution has not.appropriated any amount to the fund due to net loss during the
year. Detail of corporate social responsibility fund is as follows:

Particulars 2080/81 2079/80
Opening Balance 486,424 611,726
Transfer to fund during the year 140,388
Interest earned during the year
Expenses during the year 72,705 125,302
Closing Balance 554,108 486,424
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6.8

6.9

Loan Classification

Details loans and advances to customers and classification as per NRB Directives are as follows:

Particulars Insured Loan | Uninsured Loan 2080/81 2079/80
Pass Loan 391,226,389 1,496,149,190 1.887.375,579 1,.848.931,573
Watch List . 127,994,299 127,994,299 58,228,394
Restructure Loan 1,770,303 | 141,832,417 143,602,720 | « 255,726,654
Sub-standard Loan | 881,000 76,083,767 76,964,767 28,376,031
Doubtful Loan - 21,148,826 21,148,826 96,294,687
Loss Loan - | 129,585,862 129,585,862 94,061,475
Total 393,877,692 l 1,992,794,360 2,386,672,053 2,381,618,814

Loan Loss Provision and LLP Write Back

Details of loan loss provision and LLP write back under NRB Directive in respect of loans and advances
to customers are as follows:

Loan LLP LLP LLP Write | Additional
Classification | (Insured) . (Uninsured) 2050/81 AISI%h Back LLP
Pass 1,271,486 | 19,449,939 | 20,721,425 | 24,036,110 | 3,314,685 -
Watch List -1 6,399,714.95 6,399,715 2,911,420 - | 3,488,295

’ Restructure 22,128.79 7,091,620.83 7,113,750 | 12,786,333 5,672,583 -
Sub-standard | 55,062.50 | 19,020,941.75 = 19,076,004 7,094,008 | - | 11,981,997
Doubtful - 10,574,413.00 | 10,574,413 | 48,147,344 | 37,572,931 E
Loss - | 129,585.862.00 129,585,862 | 94,061,475 - { 35,524,387
Additional | 8,833,977 | 13,579.961 4,745,984 -
Total 1,348,677 192,122,492 | 202,305,146 | 202,616,650 | 51,306,183 50,994,679

On the basis of report of the investigation committee of the institution, legal action has been initiated
against the previous Field Staff Mr. Gaurav Bahadur Adhikari of Murkuchi Branch who was charged of
fraud and forgery and recovery of Rs. 3,071,514 from him is in process. As per direction of the Nepal
Rastra Bank, the institution has created 100% loss provision till full recovery of such amount:

As at Asar end 2081, the institution has posted details of loans and advances Rs. 2.098,548.891 only with
the Karja Suchana Kendra against total loans and advances Rs. 2,386,672.053. Under NRB Directive, the
institution has created additional 2% loss provision (Rs. 5,762,463) against loan amount Rs. 288,123,162
which is not updated with the Karja Suchana Kendra.

As per NRB direction, double restructure uninsured loans Rs. 72,624,304 (with LLP Rs. 3,631,215) has
been converted into loss uninsured loans and additional LLP Rs. 68,993,089 has been created against such
foss loans.
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF COMPANY |
This Certificate of Tnccyporation has been issued to
M/s Shrijanshil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha

Public Limited having incorporated it on the 24 day of Getober, 2018 pursuaut to
sub-section (1) of section 5 of the Companies Act, 2006.

A
Date: 2018-10-24 Asst. Registrar
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